SC#93498-3

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF WASHINGTON

JOSUE CRUZ MEDINA Appellate,

٧.

State of Washington Respondant,

DISCRETIONARY REVIEW RAP 17

JOSUE CRUZ MEDINA (Pro-Se)
Washington State Penitetiary
1313 N 13th Avenue,
Walla Walla, Washington 99362

A. IDENTITY OF PETITIONER

I, Jose Cruz Medina, Petitioner/Movant, and resides at all times at the Washington State Penitentiary 1313 n 13th avenue, Walla Walla Washington, and asks this Court to accept review of the designated in part B. of this Motion.

B. DECISION

- 1) The factual determinations of opinion of the Court of Appeals Division III. pages 2-5 was based on a unreasonable factfinding procedure.
- 2) The Division III. COA. decision as the facts are applied conflicts with the decision of the United States Constitution and the U.S. Supreme Court Authority Holding: officer lacked particularized suspicion of a crime and relied on innocuous facts and generalized accusations.
- 3) The COA. erred by misapplying the facts to this Courts Authority unreasonably and is in conflict with a Constitutioal search and warrants Review by this Court.
- 4) The COA. op. findings of informants information provided to officer Scott lacked cause for a <u>Terry</u> investigative stop because the information relates to bare conclusions unsupported by sufficient factual basis supporting criminal activitythus, in conflict with Division One and Two of the Court of Appeals.

- 5) The facts as applied to United States Constitution and U.S. Authority was unreasonable as applied to informants information that Mr. Medina engaged in criminal activity and warrants a Terry search.
- 6) The COA. misapplied <u>Russel</u> and is in conflict with this Courts ruling in <u>State v. Snapp</u> in finding officer Scott's search was justiled.
- 7) The Lower Court's opinion did not reach the merits of the trial Courts denial of Suppression Hearing under United States Constitution and U.S Supreme Court Authority.
- 8) This Court should accept review because Mr. Medina's <u>Terry</u>
 v. Ohio search involves a significant Question of Law and involves a issue of Substantial Public Interest.
- 9) The trial court's incorrectly calculated offender score and was affirmed by COA. Op. at pg. 11 and 12 by incorrect fact-findings which defeats the purpose of SRA. thus, Remand is warranted for re-sentencing.
- 10)Mr. Medina's presence on remand to court for scriver's error is necessary to be at all critical stages of proceedings because the holding in Bazina warrant's this process.

C. DECISION OF THE LOWER COURT

This Court accepts review from a Order dismissing a appeal where a decision conflits with a decision of the Court of Appeals This case qualifies for review under all of the revelant criterion. The decision below is in conflict and it involves a Substantial Constitutional Question regarding the following:

A petition for review will be accepted by the Supreme Court only: (1) If the decision of the Court of Appeals is in conflict with a decision by the Supreme Court; or (2) If the decision by the Court of Appeals is in conflict with a decision of another division of the court of Appeals; or (3) If a significant question of law under the Constitution of the State of Washington or of the United States is involved; or (4) If the petition involves a issue of Substantial Public Interest that should be determined by the Supreme Court.

The COA. Op. at pg. 10 was a unreasonable determination of facts based on the fact finding procedure that a crime occured Mr. Medina objects to the COA. Findings on pages 2-4 and 5 because these findings are in conflict with Art. 1 § 7 of the Washington State Constitution. Further, the findings as applied to the United States Authority was unreasonable though the lower courts correctly identifies the applicable Supreme Court precedent and the standards contained in Terry precedent.

On pages 6,7,8, and 9 of the COA. Op. decision correctly identifies the governing legal rule but applies it unreasonably to the facts of this case thus, qualifies as a decision involving a unreasonable application of both State and Federal Law as Mr. Medina argues below.

Next, the COA. failed to evaluate the evidence of the offender Score Calculation; (COA. Op. pages 10-12), properly in accordance with the correct legal standard and substitutes its own findings of likelihood what the sentencing judge relied, at least in part, on the incorrect standard ranges in the calculus. Thus, affirming to uphold a sentence which the sentencing judge might not have imposed, given the correct information. This Court should remand the matter to the Superior Court for re-sentencing.

Finally, the COA. Op. at 12-13 warrants Mr. Medina to be present at the Superior Court for re-sentencing upon remand. State v. Blazina, 182 Wn.2d 827, 344 P.3d 680 (March 2015).

WHY REVIEW SHOULD BE ACCEPTED RAP 13.5

The Court of Appeals Division III. created probable error because the COA. Op. decision is in conflict with Terry v. Ohio, 392 U.S. 1, 188 S.Ct. 1868, 20 L.Ed.2d 889 (1968), the Court completely ignored applying the facts to the United States Constitution and the U.S Supreme Court Authority on the issues Mr. Medina's Motion to Suppress his warrantless Seizure and Search.

A seizure for the U.S. Constitutional 4th Amendment.

The COA. first stated the findings of fact of the stipulated Bench trial findings in the light most favorable to guilt and all contrary evidence ignored.

For example (1) No reliable observation supporting reasonable suspicion of criminal activity; or (2) The color of the shirt and description of drug use was unsupported by sufficient factual basis disclosed to officer Scott;

or (3) That Mr. Medina was a ex-convict and there was more to base a <u>Terry</u> search than Mr. Medina's appearance. (4) It is questionable the Division III. COA. Applied the facts to <u>Arizona v. Gant</u>, 556 U.S. 332, 129 S.Ct. 1710, 173 L.Ed.2d 485 (2009).

The facts of Mr. Medina's case is not a exemption permissible under Art. 1 § 7 of Washington Constitution in light of <u>Gant</u>'s 2nd exception that Medina's (ATV) he was sitting on in front of his friends house, that it was reasonable to believe the evidence relevant to a crime of arrest might be found in the vehicle.

The probative value of any evidence up to this point aws less than minimal. The most that the evidence could have established for a <u>Terry</u> stop was there was a Hispanic sitting on a (ATV) at his friends covetous section to there house.

Mr. Medina moved to suppress the firearm found on his person and the COA.'s never reviewed under the United States Constitution and Authority considering temporal proximity (between the illegality) and the discovery of evidence, the presence of intervening circumstances, and the purpose and flagrancy of the officer's misconduct. Wong Sun v. United States, 371 U.S 471, 487-88, 83 S.Ct. 407, 9 L.Ed.2d 441 (1963), and Brown v. Illinois, 442 U.S. 590, 603-604, 95 S.Ct. 2254, 45L.Ed.2d 416 (1975).

STATE LAW AND WASHINGTON CONSTITUTION ART. 1 § 7

The Court of Appeals decision on Mr. Medina's Motion to Suppress is in conflict with <u>State v. Z.U.E.</u>, 183 Wn.2d 610 (July 2015) which is both legally and factually similar and the same result reached in **Z.U.E.** is also required here.

The COA. overlooked or misapprehended both matter of material facts and law when it concluded, there was reliable and sufficient tip to justify a Terry stop.

First there was no reasonable probability that there a felon in possession of a firearm sitting on a (ATV) next to his friends house. There was no observation supporting reasonable suspicion of criminal activity. The fact-finding procedure used in Mr. Medina's case, a tip was called into 911. by itself a informants reliability doe's not generally Justify a <u>Terry</u> investigative stop based on informants tip.

A law enforcement officer may not detain or question a individual on the basis of a reliable informants tip that merely relates to a bare conclusion unsupported by sufficient factual basis disclosed to the officer prior to detention.

Each case requires a individualized review of the circumstances including veracity of the informant and factual basis of tip. Z.U.E., Id.

In Medina's case like Z.U.E. Not enough information was provided to officer Scott or 911, officer Scott never corroborated any criminal activity occured. Officer Scott did not observe any threatening circumstances warranting immediate and invasive action. Only a Hispanic sitting on a (ATV) next to a house talking to some girls.

Narvarette v. California, U.S., 134 S.Ct. 1683, 186 L.Ed.2d 680 (2014) must guide the court, beginning with the officers asserted suspicions.

Medina did not have the same colored shirt, no crime was committed and all officer Scott's observations contradicted that suspicion. The informant could not provided facts Mr. Medina was engaged in criminal activity. Specifically the truck was not reported stolen, and there was no factual basis of illegal drug use, or that Mr, Medina is a ex-felon possessing a firearm. Allegations officer's could not ascertain how the informant's knew any of these things.

The COA. committed probable error insofar as it failed to evaluate the totality of available mitigation evidence of a Unconstitutional Terry stop.

Though this Court presumes the informant reported honestly, officer Scott had no basis on which to evaluate the accuracy of her estimation. This Court should follow <u>State v. Sieler</u>, 95 Wn. 2d 43, 47, 621 P. 2d 1272 (1980).

These observations are not to be particularly blatant criminal activity, but they must corroborate more than just innocuous facts, such as a individuals appearance. See <u>State v. Wakley</u>, 29 Wn.App. 238, 241- 243, P.2d 835 (1981). Thus, the Division III. decision is in conflict with Division I. <u>Wakely</u> and <u>State v. Lesnick</u>, 84 Wn.2d 940, 944, 530 P.2d 243 (1975).

Officer Scott was not able to independently corroborate "either the presence of criminal activity or that the informers information was obtained in a reliable fashion". Sieler, 95 Wn.2d at 47. (officers did not observe the female passenger with a gun, nor could they reasonably confirm the females age prior to the stop).

In Mr. Medina's case the corroboration of a innocuous fact, such as his appearance is a innocuous fact and the COA. committed probable error. Sieler and Lesnick is good law. Supra.

Navarette takes a different path. State v. Z.U.E. (supra) makes clear that a fair reading of the Washington Law this kind of Terry stop is not permissible because the factual basis did not make a showing Medina was engaged in criminal activity.

Washington Constitution has its heightened privacy protections that dictates acceptance of Medina's Discretionary Review.

The COA. Op. at page 7. committed probable error by misapplied facts of this case in <u>State v. Russel</u>. Russel consented to a search. This conflicts with this Courts holding in, <u>State v. Snapp</u>, 174 Wn.2d 177, 275 P.3d 289 (2012). This Court reversed Snapp's conviction because illegal search made incident to

Snapp's arrest on a outstanding warrant.

REVIEW IS WARRANTED

MR. MEDINA IS ENTITLED TO A NEW SENTENCING HEARING BASE ON OFFENDER SCORE.

The COA. committed possible error because RCW Chapter 9.94(a) Sentencing reform act [SRA], sets the law for criminal sentencing for felony cases. [SRA] sets forth structured grid based on seriousness levels of the offenses and offenders score. It also permits trial courts the exercise of limited discretion. The Court has described that discretion as limited discretion. The COA. Op. conflicts with principal discretion. State v. Parker, 132 Wn.2d 182, 937 P.2d 575, 579 (1997).

The COA. affirmed Mr. Medina's incorrectly calculated score and committed possible error because of a great likelihood that the Judge relied, at least in part, on the incorrect standard ranges in his calculus.

By COA. affirming Medina's sentence upholds a sentence the Judge might not have imposed given the correct reasons and defeats the purpose of the [SRA]. The COA. errors by replacing the trial judges findings for the COA.'s findings for giving the high range of the sentence.

Re-sentencing is warranted should this Court accept review.

REVIEW IS WARRANTED

Mr. Medina's presence on remand to court for scriver's error is necessary, to be at all critical stages of proceeding's because the holding in <u>Bazina</u> warrant's this process.

Dated this 30 day of August 2016.

Judice C Medice JOSUE CRUZ MEDINA

JOSUE CRUZ MEDINA #
WASHINGTON STATE PENITENTIARY
1313 n 13th Ave,
WALLA WALLA WASHINGTON 99362

SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON

JOSHECRUZ MEDINA,	No. 93498-3
Appellate /Plaintiff,) NOTICE OF MOTION FOR) DISCRETIONARY REVIEW) (RAP 5.3b)
STATE OF WASHINGTON, Defendant.	} }

COMES NOW, JOSE CRUZ MEDINA

Petitioner, hereby serves notice that petitioner seeks review of the decision of the Court of Appeals, Division III, in cause number 33417-1- III, from order dated July 26,2016.

Dated: 8-30-16.

Signature C Meoline

JOSHE CRUZ MEDINA
Printed Name/DOC # 775001
WSP/ 1313 N. 1316 AVE
Address
Walla Walla Juashington
City/State/Zip
99362

FILED July 26, 2016 In the Office of the Clerk of Court WA State Court of Appeals, Division III

IN THE COURT OF APPEALS OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON DIVISION THREE

STATE OF WASHINGTON,)	No. 33417-1-III
)	
Respondent,	,)	
•)	
v.)	UNPUBLISHED OPINION
)	
JOSUE CRUZ MEDINA,)	
	')	
Appellant.)	

LAWRENCE-BERREY, A.C.J. — Josue Medina appeals his conviction for first degree unlawful possession of a firearm. He argues the trial court erred when it denied his motion to suppress. He also argues the trial court misunderstood his offender score when it imposed a high end standard range sentence, and that it erred when it failed to strike a paragraph in the judgment and sentence that requires him to pay costs of medical care while incarcerated. We hold that the trial court properly denied Mr. Medina's motion to suppress and that it did not misunderstand his offender score when it imposed a high end sentence, but that remand is warranted so the trial court may consider whether it intended to strike the costs of medical care paragraph and, if so, to correct this oversight.

FACTS

In March 2014, Sunnyside Police Officer Darren Scott responded to a 911 call outside Outlook, Washington. When Officer Scott arrived at the caller's location, the caller, Gabriela Sanchez, reported that an unknown man had asked her for gas for his disabled truck parked in front of her house. Ms. Sanchez said the man appeared to be on drugs and that she was afraid of what he might do. Ms. Sanchez said her husband brought some gas to the man's truck, and she observed the man remove what appeared to be a gun from his truck and place it either inside his pants or inside his shirt. She said the man was unable to start the truck, so he unloaded a green all-terrain vehicle (ATV) from the truck bed, loaded the ATV with items from the truck bed, and then drove away.

Officer Scott noticed that the truck's ignition was broken, and the license plate tabs were expired. He ran a check of the license and registration, and both were expired. Additionally, a check of the Department of Licensing (DOL) database revealed the truck had been given new plates, and he noticed the plates on the truck were out of date. These observations led Officer Scott to believe the truck may have been stolen. He attempted to determine through DOL whether the truck was stolen, but was unable to obtain this information until much later.

Ms. Sanchez described the man's appearance to Officer Scott. She described the

man as a "Hispanic male about thirty to forty years old" who was "wearing a blue hat, a knit hat, and a blue [Seattle] Seahawk[s] sweater." Report of Proceedings (RP) at 14.

Officer Scott checked the registration for the truck, and it showed the truck was registered to a 61-year-old man. This added to his belief that the truck was stolen.

Ms. Sanchez also showed Officer Scott a cell phone picture of the unknown man. The picture was taken from a distance, and the only thing Officer Scott could see was "[the man's] clothing" and "his general build." RP at 14. Officer Scott was unable to discern any detail from the photograph other than a general profile.

After speaking with Ms. Sanchez, Officer Scott recalled that he had passed a green ATV while en route to her home. He drove to where he had earlier seen the green ATV and saw a man sitting on an ATV in front of a house. The man was wearing a blue hat.

Officer Scott asked the man whether he needed help with his disabled truck. The man said he did not know what the officer was talking about, that he was not in any truck, and then turned away.

Based on the man's clothing and build, Officer Scott suspected this man was the same person from the cell phone picture Ms. Sanchez had shown him. Officer Scott told the man of his suspicions, but the man continued to deny he was the same person. Officer Scott then asked the man to lift up his shirt so he could see what type of clothing he had

underneath. The man began to lift his shirt, but asked if he was required to do so. Officer Scott said he was not required to, and the man lowered his shirt. However, Officer Scott was able to view part of a Seattle Seahawks emblem on the man's clothing.

Officer Scott asked the man if he lived at the house he was parked in front of, and the man said he was just visiting. Two women then came from the house and confirmed to Officer Scott that they knew the man, but he did not live with them. The two women identified the man as "Joe" Medina. RP at 23.

Officer Scott described Mr. Medina's behavior as "uncooperative," and that he appeared "glitchy" or "paranoid." RP at 24. He believed Mr. Medina's behavior was consistent with amphetamine use. At about this point, Officer Scott called for backup.

Officer Scott observed that the ATV had a broken ignition. He also noticed there was a "heavy object" in the front pocket of Mr. Medina's sweater. RP at 21. The object was in an "L shape," leading Officer Scott to believe it was a gun. RP at 21. He told Mr. Medina that he knew he had a gun in his pocket and not to reach for it. He directed Mr. Medina to put his hands up on the ATV handlebars and to keep them there. Mr. Medina did not comply with Officer Scott's repeated instructions to keep his hands on the ATV handlebars.

Once backup arrived, Officer Scott and four other law enforcement officers frisked

Mr. Medina for weapons. The officers located a small handgun in the front pocket of Mr. Medina's Seattle Seahawks sweater. The officers then ran a background check on Mr. Medina, and it revealed he had prior felony convictions, so he was not permitted to possess the gun they found on him. The officers arrested Mr. Medina and the State charged him with first degree unlawful possession of a firearm.

Prior to trial, Mr. Medina moved to suppress the evidence of the gun. After a testimonial hearing, the trial court denied Mr. Medina's suppression motion, and later entered detailed findings of fact and conclusions of law. Mr. Medina agreed to a stipulated facts trial, after which the trial court convicted him of the charged crime.

The case was set for a sentencing hearing. At the hearing, the proposed judgment and sentence was handed to the trial court. The proposed judgment and sentence listed Mr. Medina's offender as 9+. After discussions with the attorneys and Mr. Medina, the trial court imposed a high end standard range sentence. The trial court found that Mr. Medina was unable to pay legal financial obligations (LFOs) and waived discretionary LFOs, except it did not strike a paragraph requiring Mr. Medina to pay medical costs incurred during incarceration. Mr. Medina filed a timely appeal.

ANALYSIS

A. MOTION TO SUPPRESS

Mr. Medina argues the trial court erred when it denied his motion to suppress. He does not assign error to any of the trial court's findings of fact. We, therefore, review the trial court's order de novo to determine whether the trial court's unchallenged findings support its legal conclusions. *State v. Armenta*, 134 Wn.2d 1, 9, 948 P.2d 1280 (1997).

Warrantless seizures are generally presumed to be unconstitutional. State v. Gatewood, 163 Wn.2d 534, 539, 182 P.3d 426 (2008); State v. Ladson, 138 Wn.2d 343, 349, 979 P.2d 833 (1999) (quoting State v. Hendrickson, 129 Wn.2d 61, 70, 917 P.2d 563 (1996)); Coolidge v. New Hampshire, 403 U.S. 443, 454-55, 91 S. Ct. 2022, 29 L. Ed. 2d 564 (1971). A seizure, for Fourth Amendment purposes, occurs "'when the individual's freedom of movement is restrained by a show of force or authority, such that "in view of all of the circumstances . . . a reasonable person would have believed that he was not free to leave." "State v. Sweet, 44 Wn. App. 226, 230, 721 P.2d 560 (1986) (quoting State v. Friederick, 34 Wn. App. 537, 541, 663 P.2d 122 (1983)). The rule against warrantless seizures is subject to "'a few jealously and carefully drawn exceptions.' "Gatewood, 163 Wn.2d at 539; accord Coolidge, 403 U.S. at 455. The burden is on the State to prove that an exception to the warrant requirement applies. Hendrickson, 129 Wn.2d at 71; State v.

Houser, 95 Wn.2d 143, 149, 622 P.2d 1218 (1980); see also Coolidge, 403 U.S. at 455 ("'[T]he burden is on those seeking the exemption to show the need for it.'") (quoting United States v. Jeffers, 342 U.S. 48, 51, 72 S. Ct. 93, 96 L. Ed 59 (1951)).

One such exception is a Terry stop. Ladson, 138 Wn.2d at 349. A Terry stop allows an officer to conduct a limited pat-down search of the outer clothing of a person in an attempt to discover weapons that could cause harm. State v. Russell, 180 Wn.2d 860, .867, 330 P.3d 151 (2014). A protective frisk is justified "when an officer can point to "specific and articulable facts" which create an objectively reasonable belief that a suspect is "armed and presently dangerous."" Id. (quoting State v. Collins, 121 Wn.2d 168, 173, 847 P.2d 919 (1993)). "For example, if an officer has information that an individual could have a gun, that information, 'when combined with other circumstances that contribute to a reasonable safety concern, . . . could lead a reasonably careful officer to believe that a protective frisk should be conducted to protect his or her own safety and the safety of others." Id. (quoting Collins, 121 Wn.2d at 177). A court should be reluctant to substitute its own judgment for that of police officers in the field. Id. at 867-68 (quoting State v. Belieu, 112 Wn.2d 587, 601-02, 773 P.2d 46 (1989)). "'A founded suspicion is all that is necessary, some basis from which the court can determine that the

¹ Terry v. Ohio, 392 U.S. 1, 88 S. Ct. 1868, 20 L. Ed. 2d 889 (1968).

detention was not arbitrary or harassing." *Belieu*, 112 Wn.2d at 601-02 (emphasis omitted) (quoting *Wilson v. Porter*, 361 F.2d 412, 415 (9th Cir. 1966)).

When reviewing a *Terry* stop, a court must examine the totality of the circumstances presented to the investigating officers. *State v. Glover*, 116 Wn.2d 509, 514, 806 P.2d 760 (1991). "The totality of circumstances includes the officer's training and experience, the location of the stop, the conduct of the person detained, the purpose of the stop, and the amount of physical intrusion on the suspect's liberty." *State v. Fuentes*, 183 Wn.2d 149, 158, 352 P.3d 152 (2015) (citing *State v. Acrey*, 148 Wn.2d 738, 746-47, 64 P.3d 594 (2003)).

Here, Officer Scott responded to a 911 call from Ms. Sanchez, who described an unknown man who was armed and appeared to be on drugs. Ms. Sanchez indicated she was afraid of what the man might do. Mr. Medina was wearing the same clothing that Ms. Sanchez had described, and the same clothing Officer Scott had observed in the cell phone picture taken by Ms. Sanchez. Officer Scott also noticed there was a "heavy object" in the front pocket of Mr. Medina's sweater. RP at 21. The object was in an "L shape," leading Officer Scott to believe it was a gun. RP at 21. Officer Scott has 24 years of experience as a law enforcement officer. Mr. Medina was evasive, uncooperative, and refused to answer questions. Officer Scott testified to the following:

[OFFICER] SCOTT: One, well besides not answering any of my questions, I basically told him okay I know you have a gun on you, do not reach for it at all, do not put your hands near your pockets whatsoever, or I'll, you could be shot in my self-defense. And to put [your] hands up on the handle bars and not remove them.

[STATE]: And did he do that?

[OFFICER] SCOTT: He started to, then he kind of took them down, eventually he did but he kept taking them off.

[STATE]: And what did you have to tell him?

[OFFICER] SCOTT: I kept having to tell him to keep his hands on the handle bars.

[STATE]: Okay. He had described, you say you had twenty three twenty four years in law enforcement, describe this situation and why you felt it necessary to do this type of safety frisk in this situation.

[OFFICER] SCOTT: Well during my ten years of [sic] police officer I [sic] dealt with many situations. I could probably count on my hand the number of times that I ever actually thought I was going to have to discharge my weapon, and this was one of them.

[STATE]: Why is that?

[OFFICER] SCOTT: Because he had immediate access to the fire arm and he was acting in a way he was not cooperating. He was being argumentative with me, and all he had, all that person had to do was reach down.

[STATE]: How far away from him were you at the time?

[OFFICER] SCOTT: Five feet.

[STATE]: ... [D]id you feel at that point you could [frisk him without officer assistance]?

[OFFICER] SCOTT: Well I chose to wait for backup in case he did choose to fight. I was trying to do it the safest way I could think of. If he were to try to fight, who knows what would have happened. I figure if I had more officers there it would de-escalate the situation to a point where no one was going to get hurt.

RP at 28-29 (emphasis added).

Mr. Medina argues Officer Scott never had reasonable suspicion that a crime had taken place. We disagree. Officer Scott had a reasonable suspicion that the disabled truck and green ATV were stolen, and that Mr. Medina had driven both and Mr. Medina was lying when he denied he knew anything of the truck. Given the need to investigate whether the truck and the green ATV were stolen, and given Officer Scott's objectively reasonable safety concerns, he and his fellow officers were justified in frisking Mr. Medina for weapons. We conclude that the trial court properly denied Mr. Medina's motion to suppress.

B. OFFENDER SCORE CALCULATION

Mr. Medina argues the trial court imposed a high end standard range sentence because it thought his offender score was 14. Calculation of a defendant's offender score is reviewed de novo. *State v. Mutch*, 171 Wn.2d 646, 653, 254 P.3d 803 (2011); *State v. Parker*, 132 Wn.2d 182, 189, 937 P.2d 575 (1997). An incorrect sentence may be challenged for the first time on appeal. *State v. Nitsch*, 100 Wn. App. 512, 519, 997 P.2d 1000 (2000). A sentencing court acts without statutory authority when it imposes a sentence based on a miscalculated offender score. *In re Pers. Restraint of Johnson*, 131 Wn.2d 558, 568, 933 P.2d 1019 (1997).

An offender score establishes the standard range term of confinement for a felony

offense. RCW 9.94A.530(1); RCW 9.94A.525. The sentencing court calculates an offender score by adding current offenses, prior convictions, and juvenile adjudications. RCW 9.94A.030(11); RCW 9.94A.589(1)(a). "A defendant's current offenses must be counted separately in determining the offender score unless the trial court finds that some or all of the current offenses 'encompass the same criminal conduct.'" *State v. Anderson*, 92 Wn. App. 54, 61, 960 P.2d 975 (1998) (quoting former RCW 9.94A.400(1)(a) (1998)). For nonviolent offenses, the offender score is generally calculated by counting "one point for each adult prior felony conviction and one point for each juvenile prior violent felony conviction and 1/2 point for each juvenile prior nonviolent felony conviction." RCW 9.94A.525(7). "A correct offender score must be calculated before a presumptive or exceptional sentence is imposed." *State v. Tili*, 148 Wn.2d 350, 358, 60 P.3d 1192 (2003). "Remand is necessary when the offender score has been miscalculated unless the record makes clear that the trial court would impose the same sentence." *Id*.

Here, the judgment and sentence lists Mr. Medina's offender score as "9+." Clerk's Papers at 74. Nowhere in the judgment and sentence or during sentencing was the trial court told Mr. Medina had an offender score of 14. Instead, at sentencing the State accurately noted that Mr. Medina had 14 prior felonies. The prior felonies listed on the judgment and sentence show 5 adult felony convictions and 9 juvenile nonviolent

felony convictions. In addition, the judgment and sentence lists 2 current felony convictions. Mr. Medina's offender score was properly calculated as 9+.

Prior to imposing sentence, the trial court reviewed with Mr. Medina his extensive criminal history, which also included 34 misdemeanors and a prior dismissed charge for unlawful possession of a firearm. The trial court imposed a high end standard range sentence not because it misunderstood Mr. Medina's offender score, but because of Mr. Medina's extensive criminal history and extensive warnings—repeated by a judge 14 times—that he could not possess a firearm.

Moreover, the particular facts of this case justify a high end sentence: Not only did Mr. Medina unlawfully possess a firearm, he repeatedly ignored Officer Scott's instructions to keep his hands on the ATV handlebars. This incident could have escalated and led to the death of a veteran police officer. We conclude that the trial court did not misunderstand or err when it imposed a high end standard range sentence.

C. IMPOSITION OF COST OF MEDICAL CARE

The trial court found that Mr. Medina lacked the present or future ability to pay his LFOs, and struck discretionary LFOs. Mr. Medina argues the trial court erred when it failed to strike paragraph 4D5 in the judgment and sentence, the paragraph that requires him to pay medical costs incurred during incarceration.

Our review of the sentencing colloquy convinces us the trial court intended to strike the paragraph but failed to do so. If so, this is a scrivener's error that the trial court is authorized to correct. CrR 7.8(a). We therefore remand this issue to the trial court for it to determine whether it intended to strike this paragraph. See State v. Munoz-Rivera, 190 Wn. App. 870, 895, 361 P.3d 182 (2015) (the remedy for scrivener's error is remand to the trial court for correction). Unless ordered by the trial court, this may be done without Mr. Medina being present.

Affirmed, but remanded to consider possible scrivener's error.