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

V. ARGUMENT 

A. THE TRIAL COURT CORRECTLY DENIED 
MEDINA'S MOTION TO SUPPRESS BECAUSE THE 
STOP WAS A VALID TERRY STOP. 

Under the Fourth Amendment to the United States Constitution 

and article I, section 7 of Washington's constitution, an officer may not 

seize a person without a warrant. State v. Garvin, 166 Wn.2d 242, 248, 

207 P.3d 1266 (2009). But a few carefully drawn exceptions exist, 
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including the Terri investigative stop. State v. Fuentes, 183 Wn.2d 149, 

157-158, 352 P.3d 152 (2015). Under this exception, an officer may, 

without a warrant, briefly detain a person for questioning if the officer has 

reasonable suspicion that the person stopped is or is about to be engaged 

in criminal activity. /d. at 158. 

A valid Terry stop requires that the officer have reasonable 

suspicion of criminal activity based on specific and articulable facts 

known to the officer at the inception of the stop. /d. In evaluating the 

reasonableness of the officer's suspicion, the reviewing court looks at the 

totality of the circumstances known to the officer. /d. The totality of 

circumstances includes the officer's training and experience, the location 

of the stop, the conduct of the person detained, the purpose of the stop, 

and the amount of physical intrusion on the suspect's liberty. /d. 

Here, Medina did not assign error to any findings of fact. 

Therefore, the findings are verities on appeal. In re Welfare of A. W., 182 

Wn.2d 689, 711, 344 P.3d 1186 (2015). Furthermore, the unchallenged 

findings of fact support the trial court's denial of Medina's motion to 

suppress. 

1 Terry v. Ohio, 392 U.S. 1 (1968). 
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Officer Scott was an experienced officer with 23 years of law 

enforcement experience responding to a detailed report of suspicious 

activity. He responded to a call of a suspicious male who had broken 

down alongside the road. He then learned that the male took items from 

the truck and transported them on an A TV and came back and took more 

items. In addition, he was told that the male appeared high and had a gun. 

On top of that, the officer learned that the truck has a broken ignition, 

expired tabs, and the wrong license plates. Almost immediately thereafter, 

he found Medina, who matched the general description of the suspect, and 

the green A TV mentioned by the reporting party. 

Medina denied any knowledge of the truck, or having a firearm. 

He also appeared high to the officer, and was argumentative with the 

officer. At this point, Medina's actions and words gave the officer further 

reasonable suspicion that Medina was not only in possession of a stolen 

truck, but also in possession of a stolen ATV. 

This was a classic Terry stop. The undisputed facts here, together 

with the rational inferences from those facts, establish that there was a 

reasonable suspicion that criminal conduct had occurred. Based on the 

totality of these circumstances, combined with the officer's training and 

experience, Officer Scott has a reasonable suspicion that Medina was in 

possession of the stolen truck and ATV, thereby justifying a Terry stop. 

6 



As such, the Court of Appeals was correct in concluding that the trial court 

properly denied Medina's motion to suppress. 

B. THE TRIAL COURT PROPERLY CALCULATED 
MEDINA'S OFFENDER SCORE. 

The State sought a sentence of 116, at the top of the standard 

range. The defense sought a sentence of 87 months, at the bottom of the 

standard range. The trial judge sentenced Medina to the top of the range 

after taking into consideration Medina's past criminal history. CP 75. 

The offender score was listed as 9+ and the standard range was listed as 

87-116 months. CP 74. 

On appeal, Medina claimed that the court imposed a top of the 

range sentence based on a misunderstanding of his offender score. 

Medina argued that the offender score was calculated at 14 points. 

Appellant's Brief at 6, 15. However, no one calculated his offenders score 

as 14 points. Medina points to the State's argument at sentencing that 

Medina has 14 prior felonies. This was an accurate statement and a proper 

description of his criminal history. It was also proper argument as it was 

undisputed that Medina had 14 prior felonies. The offender score on the 

judgment and sentence was listed as 9+, which is a correct calculation. 

Medina had 9 juvenile nonviolent convictions, 5 adult felony convictions, 
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and 2 current felony convictions. Accordingly, the Court of Appeals 

found that his offender score was properly calculated. 

VI. CONCLUSION 

This case does not meet any of the criteria in RAP 13.4(b). First of 

all, the decision is not in conflict with a decision of the Supreme Court or 

another decision of the Court of Appeals. Second, a significant question 

of law under the Constitution of the State of Washington or of the United 

States is not involved. Lastly, the petition does not involve an issue of 

substantial public interest that should be determined by the Supreme 

Court. In sum, for the foregoing reasons, the State asks that the court deny 

Medina's Petition for Review.